
Local Planning Agency 
Agenda 

Thursday, November 14, 2019 
9:00 A.M. 

Bonita Springs City Hall 
9101 Bonita Beach Road 

Bonita Springs, Florida 34135 

I . CALL TO ORDER. 

I I . ROLL CALL . 

III. PRESENTATION BY FLORIDA GULF COAST UNIVERSITY ON COMPREHENSIVE 
PLAN AMENDMENTS FOR DOWNTOWN AND OPTIONAL AMENDMENTS 
(TRANSPORTATION, HOUSING, AND FUTURE LAND USE). 

PUBLIC COMMENTS: 

IV. REVIEW OF 
OF BONITA 

THE FOLLOWING ORDINANCE FOR 
SPRINGS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: 

CONSISTENCY WITH THE CITY 

A. AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BONITA SPRINGS AMENDING THE BONITA 
SPRINGS LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE CHAPTERS 3 (DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS) 
AND 4 (ZONING); RELATING TO DEVELOPMENT AND CONSTRUCTION, 
SURFACE WATER MANAGEMENT, AND DRAINAGE; AMENDING SECTION 3-136. 
- ADDITIONAL REQUIRED SUBMITTALS; AMENDING SECTION 3-193. 
FINAL INSPECTION AND CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE; AMENDING SECTION 
4-2224 CLEARING, GRADING, OR FILLING OR LAND; PROVIDE FOR 
CONFLICTS OF LAW, SEVERABILITY, CODI FI CATION AND SCRIVENER'S 
ERRORS, MODIFICATIONS THAT MAY ARISE FROM CONSIDERATION AT 
PUBLIC HEARING AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS: 

V. NEXT MEETING. Thursday, December 12, 2019 

VI. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 09/12/19 

VII. ADJOURNMENT. 

Any person requiring special accommodations at any of the meetings 
because of a disability or physical impairment should contact Meg 
Weiss, Director of Administrative Services at 239-949-6262, at least 48 
hours prior to the meeting. If a person decides to appeal a decision 
made by the Board in any matter considered at this meeting/hearing, 
such person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding 
is made, to include the testimony and evidence upon which any such 
appeal is to be based. 

NOTE: THIS MEETING IS TELEVISED ON COMCAST, CHANNEL 98. MEETINGS CAN 
BE VIEWED AND AGENDAS ARE AVAILABLE AT WWW.CITYOFBONITASPRINGS.ORG 

U:\Deputy City Clerk\Agendas\LPA\2019\11-14-19 Local Planning Agency Agenda.doc 

WWW.CITYOFBONITASPRINGS.ORG


~
cw~ 

~'t n1ta ~llpJJ!}gS 

City of Bonita Springs 
November 14, 2019 LPA Presentation 

Moving Forward with Optional Amendments 

Downtown & Transportation 

Dr. Margaret Banyan, Florida Gulf Coast University 

Rosemarie Fusco, Ensite, Inc. 



Downtown Comprehensive 
Plan Amendments 

• Downtown vision language 

• Downtown overlay map 

• Density maximums 

• Implications 
• Allows for moving transects 
• Amendment process similar to 

LDC changes 

' G , BONITA SPRINGS DOWNTOWN DISTRICT DRAFT 1 AN · 1ta' ~ngs □ Downtown Distnct 
•;; .::t.::- Map Gcnoralod No~e1nbt.'f 20HI Ith~ map Is IOf prosont.a1lon purposH ooly) 

-

Et.II c'\:CA.E . C.~rTJ-.. ,~J 0;>o , $1teftl.:•p teru,:..:,;, a, i:-,: l '>'t CIS 1,u; --,,--,.r~ , 



- -

,

_

Land Development Code 

• FBC implementing language 

• Regulating Plan 

• Description of transects 

• Density maximum by transect 

• Commercial/ residential ratio in 
mixed use areas 

CITY OF BONITA SPRINGS 
DOWNTOWN FORM-BASED CODE 

TABLE 2.1-1. REGULATING PLAN 

·7•·-,---,,. 1- ~ -,
i-11 1_:-1

--1·· ._ .· . --1-· 1'--:..1 _-;· I. ----._-=r+:::-- ~I II ..:. 11-1 _I_--'! I r-= - , -· I. -- .L, '-l-'-- - -1.lJ. ! I /I 1 ' L. ~ ::J._ - -, - ~ ~ I 
1 j I, - 1-I-_:i 1 .. •. i:.- dJ;::-:-ltl..; .,1--::)-. '-' -~~.L, -
r- - -- - - - - ; ~-- L: .r.:." i-"-:., i -=-1 r L. =r_, _- I 

...! ' I I . - ' ='- .I t..: :-:--; - LI=:: c-
1 

I• --, 

·,.-:71 a1J ! · 1 1-J-: =~ -L =.-Jr=-..= · -t-==, L .

)( ~~ \=r~~~ ij
1

rt~(7\~~~:?r}~,~~ '. ~~~~ -- I 
;l· -~-,-7 - ~t-= f ::-:-=i~=\ I Ii ~12.fl J .J, ._,~I-, j=1C71 
,..,. - · - ) . l 1-I 1-~--- 1 • 1 I ,,-t ,;· .. I •, 
.c'. ::'. . 1'. -1 ,- ,~"r'""'''""' ' l ' I -r - . .. ::- '1_ -
•· :-=·-1 :--.i-~- 1--:j

i
' 
" 
~ 

I 
· 11--·r:::,1. -_-.·_-:-::...• 1 

12· , ;;f '--11: a !_1_-,J: ...r..' ,i-_" "] , 

-i :_ . l-...,.---=, ....- ~. ,.dcti;:;i C • I.r;:·d ,i, a -, ·, ~ I'~--:. - I -
1 

1-, •~: . d• • r-,,,"'•"I~ 
_ 

' I r"'· · - . , ·'"'p '~I ... n r . I - • J.=- . r I . . . CI . 
1.:,-•,...-_1-,~c;°J• J_ f.=i .--::1· _: f.) " I I ;:_t"7 ·.:-·~· •.cl · 
:·-j-1-=--~;--~-:. ► E-:.11 """=1- r~-~ ~-~ 1::tJ1 _ ... f'._~~~ 
::i,. J,-1=-1 ', I- T , :.:.. i fi)z ;, n ,.J t J I I -=I' ,_, -, .. 

LJI _,_,.1.-:_ 1--1 ,,-.'<:,~' /, __ J,- - l --._'__ , ... 
f~:?-1...:_:,l,l--:t-..:.- :n ;:::_\r \'"~- I - ;• 1 1._':j ~ '~ .._. / _I f- , ,\;· 

' ·1 t j. I ; '~- - ,--·-\, "· " I . [" 7 ,h i, .L.'._ ·=-
- . ' /..:: . ,1 ~·' ,.f~tl }i , 1m 1FIJ' ""'''\rn•- '..-.IL '\ , 1·_ -

1 
•. -. 

1 t I 1 

1 1 -
·· 1 l, -'.L- ··\, -~ 

1 , 
-r
-

i "-- k1·1 
-

!
• 

~ . m ITT 
•lol<1$SI 

I ; 
• 1 ':,..J J 

. :. 1· - - 11 ' /1I: -- =i _· IJ - I■ ..;j , - ,r:1 - '--(\_71-
1 

___:..., / ~ 1- - ( ~ - IT 1·, "ii"- \ ' -- ~ f U.1._, I '- ' 1 

::-:--= -~ '":·.1.-;-., i'J.±1..ri· ~, ·-ru llii?.llll{l1",1 m - ,;..J 1' ~ I 
- ) 1 • • - P, ~a.,y.ina11.> ,-.. j aJI , L...:.J i - I ---------, - r -I1'',, -~, 1T, .l,,.J. _,1,,1 I 1Im " "'""'-" ' -1 'i- I, 
, ·=- - =- - . t , 1 1 11 i,; -rn Ff 1 .. J -=,~•1 1 LL ....-r-t-1
I , - ----·I ~ - · .......;::::iv·ll!l1E:;;;tW..:.J c.I.l ..- • I. , ,J f- - I I . . ~. -~~~~J : ~ 1 ~ ! : }- -r JI; - -
•-=-1 •1 y -, -) ti! ;, ,Pr. . m- m , - ~ A ,1J. ,~ ~ ,_ 

=..u.l_c;:::- ~. ~ '-,., TI_,...,kJ,1,J w~~v.,...}B1-
L - ,.~ 'h_i...:..:' I I~ 

0---7'/I !111 ..., ' -~(". . • "~ ~[:giC•lJ 10~•=:J --"T5 ~"LJ ~ 1 ~i,-;1 $1 - 1 -
,;--:,1_-1J7'i I , 1 ·.'""""'~•··· . •/ nnr-I1r:i q .;
Ii-:-'. -IL _J =- 1I J 7 - - ·- .!. ..!.. .:. ... I. , ~ ~ l:.:J c ~l'"lis1J \ ...(L_i_ - ~3 

'i-L: --. -1 _1 _!L..[! [.'1LJI7=1I I I . / ~ / I1-.-l - !.: .. ~..:- ~.f -.L- ... ', / , """"~'"" ••-: _TT}_ ·-
7 so DID 

-l---_-11 ~-- ~~ I "' I SOIRD :......·.::--= 
t'- IL-r;- I _J . _, . ., ~ .-'-.,.___,,-~ I ' - ,,_, .,_" ..... 
.__·.·1·J··111l7'· ="", I· . / ,: • fV"',.,,.,..---- c.-ns ·••··'"·· 
,:,;;J' i . ·, ·- - ! / I I :2 - - -
r:=,,., I. I,, L=I I_·,_ .- ~ I ·---- csx sow1 
- - _.._ r ------r I __:: l ;;- , jl - ·1 H•~w1::: Pmp-'!rt y 

- -- ~.c---J~ ~ - - r -.:'- =-;.;;.;:,,r'.... ---=-=--7---=.:.-,- .\ . -~~::;:~::;, 



.... .. .. . .. ,• 

· --1 .· '• 

C 
0 ·-....., 
ro 
t: 
0 
a. 
V) 

C 
ro 
~ 

....., 
C 
QJ 

E 
QJ 



• • • 

Transportation Element Amendments: Mobility 
Fee 

• Uses person miles traveled as basis for fee (not trips) 

• Allows for city-wide projects to be funded 

• Considerable flexibility in Plan/ Fee design 

• Good option for pursuing multi-modal vision 

• Tested in the state 

A ai o~~ 



Mobility Fee 
Programs in 
Florida 

from Using Mobility Fees to 
Fund Transit Improvements 

Fl_G_URE 2: EXISTING MOlliLIJY FELll.ND SIMILAR PROGRA!1S_IN FLORID-8 

• CITIES 

1 Altamonte Springs Mobility Fee 

2 Boca Raton Planned Mobility 
e ,:~ 

Developments e 
3 Destin Multimadal 

Transportation District (MMTD) 

4 Gainesville Transportation 
Mobility Program* e 

5 Jacksonville Mobility Fee 

6 Jacksonville Beach Mobility Fee• COUNTIES 

7 Kissimmee Mobility Fee• .,._
17 Alachua County Multi- 20 Nassau County 

8 Maitland Mobility Fee* - 30 
Modal Transportation Mobility Fee• 
Mitigation9 Miami Lakes Mobility Fee 21 Osceola County '" 

18 Broward County Mobility Fee*10 Orlando Multimodal ~ . 
Transportat ion Transportation Impact Fee 22 Pasco CountyConcurrency 

Multimodal Mobility11 Ormond Beach Mobility Fee Assessment 
Fee* 

12 

13 

Panama City Mobility Fee 

Plant City Transportation 

19 Hillsborough County 
Mob ility Fee 23 Sarasota County 

Mobility Fee * 
Mobility Fee• 

14 Sarasota Multimodal Fee 

15 Tampa Multimodal Impact Fee • indicates if the jurisdiction hos also rescinded tran spo rta t ion 

16 Tarpon Springs MMTD 
concurrency in their Comprehensive Pion, as provided by the Florido 
Deportm ent of Economic Opportun ity (4/2016) 

14 / INTRODUCTION USING MOBILITY FEES TO FUND TRANSIT IMPROVEMENTS 

https://FELll.ND


Element Amendments 

• Map series 

• Amend and update language: studies, plans, and roadways 

• Include mobility fee/ plan language and process 

• Implications 

• Will allow for multi-modal and operational funding 

• Will require additional consultant expertise 

• Will take additional time for studies & implementation 



0 
N 
0 
N 
C 
ro 

---, 

0 
~ 
OJ 0 

N OJ N 
(].J " U1 N 

0 $ °"o(J)NC n CJ) ""O,._ " cY) 
n °" 

(].J " n n °" n 
-0 N °" q-Nro " ro ......, OJ ......,E ......, ......,......, C C 

·- 0 0·-r- E ·-......, 
ro 
0.. E ·-......, 

(./) ·- (./) 
~ 0.. u 0.. 

C ......, C0 ·- 0C ro ro-0 C -0(].J !.... !.... 

r- <( <( r- <( 

... 
tl.O 
C ·-V') 

::J 
0 Q) 

V')I: ::,... 
C -00·-......, ro 

C 

ro .....J.._, 
!.... Q)
0 !... 

C. ::J.._,
V') 

::JC 
LLro 

I-
!... o2S 

E 
-a 
C 
(].J 

E 
<( 

-a 
(].J 
~ u 
(].J 

0.. 
X 
w 



CITY OF BONITA SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

ORDINANCE NO. 19-_ 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BONITA SPRINGS AMENDING THE BONITA SPRINGS 
LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE CHAPTER 3 (DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS) AND (ZONING); 
RELATING TO DEVELOPMENT AND CONSTRUCTION, SURFACE WATER 
MANAGEMENT, AND DRAINAGE; AMENDING SECTION 3-136. -ADDITIONAL REQUIRED 
SUBMITTALS; AMENDIN'G SECTION 3-193. - FINAL INSPECTION AND CERTIFICATE OF 
COMPLIANCE; AMENDING SECTION 4-2224 CLEARING, GRADING, OR FILLING OR 
LAND; PROVIDE FOR CONFLICTS OF LAW, SEVERABILITY, CODIFICATION AND 
SCRIVENER'S ERRORS, MODIFICATIONS THAT MAY ARISE FROM CONSIDERATION AT 
PUBLIC HEARING AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, Florida Statutes §166.021 authorizes the City of Bonita Springs to establish, coordinate 
and enforce laws that are necessary for the protection of the public; and 

WHEREAS, protection of the public health, safety and welfare is a legitimate public purpose recognized 
by the courts of Florida; and 

WHEREAS, on July 17, 2019, the Bonita Springs City Council directed City Staff to prepare 
amendments to the land development code implementing the City's strategic priorities of stormwater 
management and environmental protection; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council hereby desires to implement new regulations relating to development 
within the City including to provide for as-built record drawings, stormwater modeling, and additional 
documentation at time of building permit. 

THE CITY OF BONITA SPRINGS HEREBY ORDAINS: 

SECTION ONE: AMENDMENTS: 

The City of Bonita Springs is hereby amended, which amendments consist of changes to Chapter 3 of 
the Land Development Code, Chapter 4 of the Land Development Code which are further described in exhibit 
"A" attached which are attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference as are the recitals above. 

SECTION TWO: CONFLICTS: 

All sections or parts of sections of the City of Bonita Springs Code of Ordinances in conflict herewith 
are intended to be repealed to the extent of the conflict. Whenever the requirements or provisions of this 
amending ordinance are in conflict with the requirements or provisions of any other lawfully adopted ordinance 
or statutes, the most restrictive requirement shall apply. 

SECTION THREE: SEVERABILITY: 

If any section, subsection, clause or provision of this ordinance is declared invalid or unconstitutional by 
a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder shall not be affected by such invalidity. 

SECTION FOUR: MODIFICATION, SCRIVENER'S ERRORS, AND CODIFICATION: 

The provisions of this Ordinance may be modified as a result of consideration that may arise during the 
public hearing considering its adoption to be incorporated into its final form. The provisions of this Ordinance 
may be corrected for typographical errors that do not effect the intent without the need for additional public 

1 



_____________ _ 

hearings upon the filing of a corrected version with the City Clerk. Furthermore, the prov1s1ons of this 
Ordinance shall be made part of the Bonita Springs Code and its provisions may be renumbered or relettered 
or rephrased to accomplish such codification. 

SECTION FIVE: EFFECTIVE DATE: 

The effective date of this ordinances shall be thirty days from its adoption date. 

DULY PASSED AND ENACTED by the City Council of the City of Bonita Springs. Lee County, Florida this 
_____ day of _____. 2019 

AUTHENTICATION: 

Mayor City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
City Attorney 

Vote: 

Carr: Gibson: 
Dewitt: Quaremba: 
Forbes: Simmons: 

Date Filled with the Clerk: 

2 



Sec. 3-136. - Additional required submittals. 

The following must be submitted with an application for development order approval: 

(1) Letter of authorization. If the applicant is not the owner, a notarized letter signed by the owner 
of the property authorizing the applicant to submit and be responsible for the application. 

(2) Ownership and unified control. A notarized statement of ownership or unified control document. 

(3) Legal description. A legal description for the property shall be submitted. 

(4) Title assurance. Title assurance in the form of either a title certification by an attorney or a title 
insurance policy shall be required. 

(5) Boundary survey. A boundary survey prepared by a surveyor, meeting the minimum technical 
standards for land surveying in the state, as set out in F.A.C. ch. 61G-17-6, shall be submitted. 
Boundaries must be clearly marked with a heavy line. The boundary line shall include the entire 
area to be developed. The Federal Emergency Management Agency flood zone and required 
finished floor elevations shall be shown. 

(6) Plat. If the development is a subdivision, a plat meeting the requirements of F.S. ch. 177 shall 
be submitted. 

(7) Zoning ordinance. A copy of the most recent zoning ordinance for the subject property, and any 
other pertinent zoning ordinances, prior county zoning resolutions, special exceptions or 
variance documents, shall be submitted. 

(8) Existing conditions and improvements drawing. An existing conditions and improvements 
drawing showing at a minimum the following: 

a. An area location map showing the location of the property to be developed in relation to 
arterial and collector streets. 

b. Coastal construction control lines, if applicable. 

c. The location and name of abutting streets together with the number of lanes, the widths of 
rights-of-way and easements, and the location and purpose of abutting utility easements. 
The established centerline of streets on or abutting the property shall be shown. 

d. Existing elevations based on the North American Vertical Datum (NAVO) 1988. Sufficient 
spot elevations based on the North American Vertical Datum (NAVD) 1988 shall be shown 
to indicate the slope of the land and any rises, depressions, ditches, etc., that occur, but in 
no case shall spot elevations be shown at a spacing greater than 200 feet. Spot elevations 
shall be shown beyond the development boundary extending a minimum of 25 feet. The 
city manager or designee may direct a closer grid pattern or elevations more than 25 feet 
beyond the development boundary to provide sufficient satisfactory information. For 
developments of 40 acres or more, contours at one-foot intervals shall be shown. 

e. Identification of wetlands as defined in chapter 9. The applicant may be required to flag 
these areas for site inspection by the city manager or designee. 

f. Vegetation associations (not land use category) on the site as listed in the Florida Land 
Use, Cover and Forms Classification System, mapped at the same scale as the site plan. 
The map shall include significant areas of rare and unique upland habitats as defined in the 
city comprehensive plan. 

g. The location of all existing buildings and structures on the property. If buildings or 
structures are to be moved or razed, this should be noted. 

h. The location and size of all public water and sewage systems, private wells, irrigation and 
flowing wells, bikeways, pedestrian ways, curbs, gutters, storm drains and manholes on or 
abutting the property. 



i. The zoning classifications for the subject property, as well as the zoning and actual use of 
all abutting properties. 

j. The fire district in which the proposed development is located. 

k. The nature and location of any known or recorded historical or archaeological sites as 
listed on the Florida Master Site File, and the location of any part of the property which is 
located within level 1 or level 2 zones of archaeological sensitivity pursuant to chapter 5. A 
description of proposed improvements that may impact archaeological resources shall also 
be provided. 

I. The location of existing and proposed public transit service areas, and bus routes and 
stops, including passenger amenities, e.g., shelters, lighting, benches, bikeways, 
pedestrian ways, passenger parking, bicycle racks, etc. 

m. A diagram depicting the existing surface hydrology of the property. 

(9) Proposed development plan drawings. Proposed development plan drawings showing at a 
minimum the following: 

a. If the development is a subdivision, all lot lines and lot numbers. 

b. Phasing plan. Where a large development is proposed, the applicant must submit a master 
phasing plan with the stages numbered in sequence. It is understood that, for long-term 
projects, the details of a given phase may change as the economic, environmental, social, 
and legal elements of the proposed development change. For such phased developments, 
each phase will be issued a separate development order, but each phase will be 
considered in relation to the rest of the overall project. The phasing plan must show how 
each phase fits into the master plan for the continuance of streets, bike facilities, 
pedestrian facilities, drainage, stormwater management, potable water, fire protection, 
sewage collection, landscaping, and buffers. Specific requirements for phased projects are 
specified in section 3-95. 

c. Proposed buildings or proposed structures. The building envelope, that is, the perimeter of 
the area within which the building will be built, the height of all buildings and structures, the 
minimum elevation of the top of the lowest floor relative to the base flood elevation (BFE) 
consistent with the state building code, the maximum number of dwelling units or gross 
floor area, and no less than the minimum number of required parking spaces, including the 
number of spaces for the handicapped, shall be shown. 

d. Open space, parks, and recreation. All proposed open space, parks, and recreation areas 
and facilities shall be shown and identified as either public or private. If common facilities, 
including but not limited to, recreation areas or facilities, and common open space, are 
proposed, a statement shall be included explaining how the area or facilities shall be 
permanently operated and maintained, and identifying who will be responsible for such 
maintenance. A list of the facilities to be constructed within each park or recreational area 
shall be provided or shown on the drawings. 

e. Proposed vehicular ingress and egress for the development. 

f. Proposed streets within the development. 

g. Proposed location of on-site and off-site bike facilities and pedestrian facilities, with ingress 
to and egress from the development, as well as to or from common open space areas. 

h. Where applicable, the proposed location and type of public transit amenities to be 
provided. 

i. Parking and service areas. All off-street parking areas and all landscaped areas to be 
reserved for future parking spaces pursuant to section 4-1729, and all service areas for 
delivery of goods or services, shall be shown for all developments that are not 
subdivisions. 



j. Utilities. A statement indicating the proposed method intended to provide water, sewer, 
electricity, telephone, refuse collection, and street lighting, including, but not limited to: 

1. The names and addresses of all utilities, public or private, intended to supply the 
service. 

2. The names and addresses of the owners of all existing water and sewage systems 
within one-quarter mile of the proposed development. 

3. A plan showing the location and size of all water mains and services, fire hydrants, 
sewer mains and services, treatment plants, and pumping stations, together with plan 
and profile drawings showing the depth of utility lines and points where utility lines 
cross one another or cross storm drain or water management facilities. The location of 
services shall be shown. 

k. Drainage and stormwater management plan. A drawing showing the location of all curbs 
and gutters, inlets, culverts, swales, ditches, water control structures, water retention or 
detention areas, and other drainage or water management structures or facilities shall be 
submitted. Sufficient elevations shall be shown to adequately show the direction of flow of 
stormwater runoff from all portions of the site. A copy of all drawings and calculations 
submitted to the South Florida Water Management District shall also be submitted. The 
plan shall also identify the U.S. Department of Agriculture Soil Conservation Service soils 
classifications of the site to determine the feasibility of the proposed pollution control and 
drainage plans. 

I. Landscaping and buffering. A landscaping plan shall be submitted showing not less than the 
required open space and buffer areas, and including: 

1. A tree location map or aerial photographic overlay which depicts the preservation of 
existing trees and the planting of any new trees required by city regulations. 

2. All proposed landscaping, fencing, screening and buffering. 

3. The size, variety, species, and number of all trees and shrubs, with site-specific 
location, used in landscaping, open space and buffer areas. 

4. All proposed signs and exterior lighting. 

5. The calculations to determine the minimum open space and other landscaping 
calculations. 

m. Historical and archaeological resources. The plan shall show the outline of historic 
buildings and approximate extent of archaeological sites. Where this information is not 
available from published sources, a professionally conducted archaeological survey may 
be required. 

n. Excavations. Where applicable, the location of all excavations must be shown, including 
the outline or boundaries of the excavation, both the outline of the top of the bank and the 
outline when the lake is at its maintained elevations, the depth of all excavations, the 
controlled water depth, and the slopes of all excavations. 

o. Groundwater and surface water impacts. A description of potential impacts to groundwater 
and surface water. The applicant is required to demonstrate no adverse offsite stormwater 
impacts by incorporating the project into the appropriate City of Bonita Springs 
Interconnected Pond and Channel Routing (!CPR) Model. The 100-year 24 hour storm 
event is the primary storm used to evaluate the proposed design. The City reserves the 
right to request the modeling of other storm events in certain circumstances. All data 
submitted shall be provided and formatted for inclusion into the city's Interconnected Pond 
Routing (ICPR) Model. During the development review process the applicant is 
encouraged to include a pre-submittal meeting with staff to introduce the project, discuss 
which watershed model should be used, and discuss which criteria will be applied for 
judging whether there are adverse offsite impacts. Once the stormwater model is agreed 



upon, the Engineer of Record should run the 100-year 24 hour simulation or other 
simulations requested by staff and compare the results to the City's published flood stages 
in the ICPR Model. A construction plan stormwater review checklist and construction plan 
stormwater design summary will be required for all developments which are not a part of a 
previously City approved stormwater management system. 

p. A description of impacts on wetlands and mitigation measures. 

q. A description of impacts on floodplains or riverine areas and mitigation measures. 

r. Benchmarks. There shall be a minimum of one benchmark per 40 acres or portion thereof. 
Each benchmark shall be shown and described on the plans. 

s. A plan demonstrating multi-modal connectivity. At a minimum, the plan must include the 
following: 

1. Pedestrian connectivity/circulation internal and external to the site; 

2. Bicycle parking internal to the site; 

3. Bicycle connectivity and circulation 

4. The location of infrastructure, including but not limited to stormwater management, 
buffer yards, off-street parking spaces and buildings in a manner that upholds the 
intent for multi-modal access to and from the development. 

(10) Aerial photograph. A recent aerial photograph of the property and all properties within 660 
feet of the perimeter of the property, with a scale of one inch equals 300 feet, shall be 
submitted. 

(11) Traffic impact statement. A traffic impact statement (TIS) shall be submitted, which shall 
survey current and anticipated traffic conditions and public transportation in order to identify 
potential traffic problems posed by the proposed development. Adverse traffic impacts created 
by the development, both on-site and off-site, shall be mitigated by the applicant as specified in 
the traffic impact mitigation plan and development order. Criteria for traffic impact statements 
are specified in article Ill, division 2, of this chapter. ·· 

(12) Traffic impact mitigation plan. A traffic impact mitigation plan shall be submitted, which shall 
be based on the approved traffic impact statement and shall identify in detail those on- and off
site road and intersection improvements necessary to mitigate the proposed development's 
adverse impacts by maintaining or restoring adopted levels of service on the public roads 
providing immediate access to the site, including any collector or arterial to which the adjacent 
street is tributary. Criteria for traffic impact mitigation plans are specified in article Ill, division 2, 
of this chapter. 

(13) Protected species survey. A species survey shall be submitted, if applicable, as required by 
article 111, division 8, of this chapter. 

(14) Protected species habitat management plan. A management plan for protected species 
habitat shall be submitted, if applicable, as required by article Ill, division 8, of this chapter. 

(15) Certificate to dig; historic preservation forms and reports. When applicable, an 
archaeological/historic resources certificate to dig shall be obtained from the city and submitted 
to the city manager or designee. Florida Master Site File forms for historical or archaeological 
resources, facade or other historic or scenic easements related to the subject property or 
reports prepared by a professional archaeologist as may be required by chapter 5 shall be 
submitted to the city manager or designee. 

(16) Historical/archaeological impact assessment. An impact assessment for historical or 
archaeological resources describing the following treatments: demolition, relocation, 
reconstruction, rehabilitation, adaptive use, excavation, filling, digging, or no impact, shall be 
submitted to the city manager or designee. 



(17) Exotic vegetation removal plan. An exotic vegetation removal plan, as specified in article 111, 
division 6, of this chapter, shall be submitted to the city manager or designee. 

(18) Calculations and other pertinent materials. The city manager or designee may also require 
submission of calculations in support of all proposed drawings, plans and specifications. 
Calculations, data and reports to substantiate engineering designs, soil condition, flood hazards, 
compensation of floodplain storage (see section 3-260), wet season water table, etc., may be 
required. Prior to the release of the drawings approved by the city manager or designee, 
construction of the development shall be limited to clearing and grubbing for construction of 
accessways to and within the site and to pollution control facilities required during the 
construction phase. If such work is done prior to approval of construction plans, a tree removal 
permit will be required. 

(19) Emergency preparedness plan. An emergency preparedness plan, approved by emergency 
management, is required prior to final approval of a development order for: 

a. A hospital, nursing home, assisted living facility (ALF) or developmentally disabled housing 
project. To be approved by emergency management, an emergency preparedness plan for 
these types of development must comply with the applicable criteria in Florida 
Administrative Rule Chapters 58A-5, 59A-3, 59A-4, and 59A-5, as they may be amended. 

b. A marina, multi-slip dock facility, or any residential development of 50 or more units. To be 
approved by emergency management, an emergency preparedness plan for these types of 
development must comply with the applicable criteria in the applicable administrative codes 
for emergency preparedness plans. 

(20) State permits. Prior to final approval of a development order, copies of permits issued by the 
South Florida Water Management District or the Florida Department of Environmental 
Protection must be submitted. Copies of all other necessary state land development permits 
must be submitted prior to the commencement of construction work on the site. 

(21) Operation and maintenance covenants. Where applicable, a copy of the covenants used for 
the maintenance and operation of the improvements required by this chapter must be 
submitted, including but not limited to, private streets and adjacent drainage, drainage and 
stormwater management systems, utilities, public water and sewage systems, on-site bikeways, 
on-site pedestrian ways, open space, parks, recreation areas, and buffers. 

(22) Articles of incorporation or other legal documents for assignment of maintenance. The 
developer must submit a copy of the legal documents creating the legal mechanism to ensure 
that the drainage system, on-site bikeways, on-site pedestrian ways, roadways, and rights-of
way are continuously maintained. 

(23) Opinion of probable construction costs. The developer's consultant must prepare and submit 
the estimated cost of installing all streets, drainage systems, water management systems, 
potable water treatment and distribution systems, sewage collection and treatment systems, 
bikeways, pedestrian ways, park and recreation improvements, landscaping, and buffers as 
follows: 

a. Subdivisions. On-site and off-site improvements. 

b. All other developments. Off-site improvements. 

The opinion of probable cost must include an estimated date of completion for the work. 

(24) Assurance of completion of improvements. Assurance of completion of the development 
improvements as specified in subsection (24)a and b of this section will be required for all off
site improvements prior to commencing any off-site or on-site development. Assurance of 
completion of the development improvements for on-site subdivision improvements will be 
required prior to the acceptance of the subdivision plat. Those on-site subdivision improvements 
which have been constructed, inspected and approved by the city manager or designee may be 
excluded from the requirements of subsection (24)a and b of this section. 



a. Surety or cash performance bond. Security in the form of a surety or cash performance 
bond must be posted with the council and made payable to the city in an amount equal to 
110 percent of the full cost of installing the required improvements approved by the city. If 
the proposed improvement will not be constructed within one year of issuance of the final 
development order, the amount of the surety or cash performance bond must be increased 
by ten percent compounded for each year of the life of the surety or bond. Alternatively, the 
surety or cash performance bond may be renewed annually at 110 percent of the cost of 
completing the remaining required improvements if approved by the city manager or 
designee. Prior to acceptance, bonds must be reviewed and approved by the city attorney 
or designee. 

b. Other types of security. The council may accept letters of credit or escrow account 
agreements or other forms of security; provided that the reasons for not obtaining the bond 
are stated and the city attorney or designee approves the document. 

(Ord. No. 05-03, § 1(3-154), 1-19-2005; Ord. No. 12-11, § 1(3-154), 8-1-2012; Ord. No. 18-05, § 
1, 5-16-2018) 



Sec. 3-193. - Final inspection and certificate of compliance. 
(a) Upon completion of all development required under the approved development order, or phase 

thereof, an inspection shall be performed by the developer's engineer or his designated representative. 
Upon finding the development to be completed and in substantial compliance with the approved 
development order documents, the engineer shall submit a signed and sealed letter of substantial 
compliance to the city manager or designee along with a final inspection request. No final inspection 
will be performed by the city until the letter of substantial compliance has been accepted. The letter of 
substantial compliance may include a submittal for a minor change with highlighted plans showing 
minor changes which do not substantially affect the technical requirements of this chapter as described 
in section 3-98. Letters of substantial compliance shall be in a form approved by the city manager or 
designee or city attorney or designee. Substantial compliance means that the development, as 
determined by an on-site inspection by a professional engineer or his designated representative. is 
completed to all the specifications of the approved development order plans and that any deviation 
between the approved development order plans and actual as-built construction is so inconsequential 
that. on the basis of accepted engineering practices. it is not significant enough to be shown on the 
development site plans. 

(b) Substantial compliance means that the development, as determined by an on site inspection by a 
professional engineer or his designated representative, is completed to all the specifications of the 
approved development order plans and that any deviation between the approved development order 
plans and actual as built construction is so inconsequential that, on the basis of accepted engineering 
practices, it is not significant enough to be shown on the development site plans. When required by 
the approved Development Order, as-built record drawings shall be provided to the City, in hard copy 
and electronically, at the time of Substantial Compliance. If submitted, the as-built drawings are to be 
based on the permitted construction drawings revised toreflect any substantial deviations made during 
construction. Both the original design and constructed condition must be clearly shown. The plans 
need to be clearly labeled as "as-built" or "record" drawings and clearly highlight any substantial 
construction deviations. As required by law, all surveyed dimensions and elevations required shall be 
verified and signed, dated and sealed by the appropriate registered professional 

(c) Upon acceptance of the letter of substantial compliance and a request for final inspection, the city 
manager or designee shall perform the final inspection. If the final inspection reveals that the 
development or phase thereof is in substantial compliance with the approved development order, a 
certificate of compliance will be issued. A certificate of compliance is required prior to the issuance of 
a certificate of occupancy from the city. If the final inspection reveals that the development or phase 
thereof is not in substantial compliance with the approved development order, a list of all deviations 
shall be forwarded to the engineer. All deviations must be corrected per the amendment and minor 
change procedure and a new letter of substantial compliance submitted and accepted prior to a 
reinspection by the city manager or designee. Applications for amendments, minor changes, 
inspections and reinspections shall be charged a fee in accordance with the adopted fee schedule. 

(d) If more than one building is covered by the development order, a certificate of compliance for streets, 
utilities, parking areas, and drainage serving each building shall be required prior to receiving a 
certificate of occupancy from the city manager or designee. If a final inspection is requested for only a 
portion of a development, that portion must be an approved phase of the development in accordance 
with the development order plans. 

(e) A development project must remain in compliance with the development order, including all 
conditions, after a letter of substantial compliance, certificate of compliance or certificate of occupancy 
has been issued by the city. This requirement applies to any property covered by the development 
order, whether or not it continues to be owned by the original developer. For purposes of determining 
compliance, the terms of the development order as issued, or subsequently amended in accordance 
with this chapter, will control. The standards applicable to review for compliance purposes will be 
based upon the regulations in effect at the time the development order, or any applicable amendment, 
was issued. 



(f) Improvements constructed pursuant to a development order may not be placed into service or 
otherwise utilized until the required certificate of compliance has been issued for the development 
order. 

(Ord. No. 05-03, § 1(3-183), 1-19-2005; Ord. No. 12-11, § 1(3-183), 8-1-2012) 



• Sec. 4-2224. - Clearing, grading or filling of land. 

(a) No land may be cleared, graded, excavated or filled, or otherwise altered, except in conformity with the 
regulations contained in this chapter and all other applicable ordinances. 

(b) Site grading and surface water management standards for all new development on all new single-family 
residential and duplex lots; which include, but is not limited to, residential homes, pools, sheds, garages and 
any other type of construction that adds impervious coverage to the lot, must include the following: 

(I) An engineered drainage plan completed bv a professional engineer licensed in the state of Florida, 
must be submitted with the application for building permit. The following items are required to be 
located on all drainage plans: 
a. Proposed erosion control devices. such as, but not limited to. silt fences. turbidity barriers, and 

filter fabric. 
b. Gutters/Downspouts/Yard Drain locations. Any structure with an outside wall which is closer 

than 10 feet from a side prope1ty line shall install properly sized gutters and downspouts to direct 
stormwater away from neighboring properties and toward front and/or rear swales or 
retention/detention areas. In the event that there is more than IO feet from wall to property line, 
gutters/downspouts/yard drains may still be required if slopes awav from the structure are steep 
or neighboring properties are at a lower elevation. 

c. Sidewalk location, including dimensions, elevations and cross sections. if required by LDC Sec. 
4- 870(2). 

d. Crown of roadway elevation. 
e. Proposed and existing elevations of lot every 50 feet. 
f. Existing elevations of surrounding prope1iies. at least 10 feet parallel from the existing property 

line and everv 50 feet. 
g. Cross sections in all directions of the lot (North. South, East and West). Graded slopes shall not 

be any steeper than 4: I. 
h. For the addition of pools, show location of overflow. 
i. Cross sections, for pool and deck extensions. in all directions adjacent to land (deck to property 

line). 
j. Closed drainage may be required in front of all Public Works rights-of-way per LDC Sec. 3-302 

and 3-303. 
k. Drainage arrows to show the direction of flow. 
I. Label all existing or proposed inlets. If inlets are proposed, provide detail and invert elevation. 
m. For any proposed retaining walls, show location. dimensions. elevations and cross sections. All 

retaining walls must be placed no closer than 1 (one) foot to the property line. 
n. For any proposed french drains. show location. detail and cross section. There should be a 40 

percent void ratio calculated. 
o. Show all materials on ground cover, such as, but not limited to. sod. mulch, rock. and shell. 
p. If there are other drainage solutions that are not mentioned above, that the applicant is proposing. 

please provide on plan. 
q. Water quality calculations. 

E+:) (JJ._Site grading during construction activities. The building site must be graded and maintained 
during construction to: 

a. Way or improved drainage conveyances; 
b. Ensure erosion control devices are being maintained: 
c. Control surface water runoff to ensure that no surface water in excess of the preconstruction 

discharge flows onto developed adjacent or abutting properties; and 
d. Maintain the flow capacity and function of existing drainage conveyances on or abutting the 

site including adjacent street rights-of-way/easements or improved drainage conveyances. 



P-H]J_Final site grading. 

a. The professional engineer that signed and sealed the drainage plan must submit a letter of 
substantial compliance, certifving that an on-site inspection was performed and the final site lot 
grading was in accordance with the approved drainage plan [refer to LDC Sec 4-2224(b)(I)]. 

b. The subject property shall be inspected by the City prior to issuance of a certificate of occupancy 
or certificate of completion, as applicable. for consistency with the approved drainage plan [refer 
to LDC Sec 4-2224(b)(I)). 

c. Final grading of a lot must: 
I. Control and direct surface water runoff to ensure that surface water discharge is 

directed into an existing surface water management system or other offsite drainage 
conveyance;and 

2. Preserve or relocate existing drainage conveyances necessary to maintain preconstruction 
flow capacity and function. 

cl. Final site grading plan features must be maintained in perpetuity by the property owner. A 
property owner may not alter or modify the lot grading in a manner that will prevent continued 
drainage of the site in accordance with the lot grading plan in effect at the time the certificate of 
occupancy or certificate of completion was issued. 

e. Where a violation has been found by the City of Bonita Springs Neighborhood Services 
Department. a storm water plan shall be submitted to the Citv of Bonita Sprin!!s Community 
Development Department that demonstrates the additional flow of surface water has been 
eliminated. The subject propertv shall be inspected by the City to determine if the violation has 
been resolved. 

(3) Lot gradingphm. 

a-:-Wllefe-t-he--p~-final grade-en-aflj'inil4-&t=-a-let-1s-great-ef-than 18 in€-hes--aee-ve-#~Re 
elevation of the adjacent street or the elevation of any adjacent developed lot as measured at the 
property line, a grading and drainage plan demonstrating compliance with the performance 
standards outlined in section 4 3 l04(b)(1) and (2) must be submitted with the application for the 
bt!ilding permit approval. 

b. Prior to issuance of a ce1iificat~cy, the building site must be graded in accordance 
with the grading and drainage plan and a final inspection must be approved by the City. 

(Ord. No. 07-20, 12-5-2007; Ord. No. 1 l-02, § 3(4-3104), 1-19-2011) 



Local Planning Agency 
Thursday, September 12, 2019 

9:00A.M. 
Bonita Springs City Hall 
9101 Bonita Beach Road 

Bonita Springs, Florida 34135 
MINUTES 

I. CALL TO ORDER. 

9:01 :26 allagher called the me 

.p, ~ . ,. .. .,, /;,:C, 

~t❖;;~~~ <~i~;,

AM Chairwoman Carolyn G

II. ROLL CALL 

Present 
Carolyn Gallagher 
Sam Vincent 
Don Colapietro 
Linda Schwartz 
Jeffrey Maturo 
Rex Sims ~:#::*:"•« /.~~r-0z;;,

~f:
III. REVIEW OF THE FOLLOW ~R~Jm';q\.1',TCE FO'f?l~NSISTENCY WITH THE CITY OF 

BONITA SPRINGS COMPRE~SIV~~:)·. · : RE 'a ,, OF AN ORDINANCE OF THE 
CITY OF BONIT~;~ NGS, FU~R!DA~-: . E CITY OF BONITA SPRINGS 
COMPREHEN~~~t " A, AS AI\Wil~Jf BY ANCE NO. 02-16, AS AMENDED, 
CONSIDER! }:;,f'HE . AININ~f}$1'ATE MANDATED AMENDMENTS ON THE 
EVALUA AND AP ISAL . RT; SO AS TO AMEND THE FUTURE LAND 
USE ELE ·: , COAS · CONSE ION MANAGEMENT ELEMENT, AND THE 
CAPITAL IM E O REVISE AND UPDATE THE REMAINING 
E GOA ECT POLICIES, AND DATA AND ANALYSIS IN 
" ®'5iJ;: HE MANDATES SET FORTH IN CHAPTER 163, FLORIDA 

TUTEstrtrt.fJV . FOR TRANSMITTAL TO THE STATE LAND PLANNING 
ENCY, PR(j~' . NFLICTS CLAUSE AND SEVERABILITY CLAUSE, AND 

.j~.\'IDING FOR IVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

it

~.,,~: ❖~ ', 

C y Attorney, reads the title block of the Ordinance into the 

9:04:45 AM Dr. Margaret Banyan presented the 2019 Amendment Cycle and state 
requirements in the Coastal Management Area based on new data. Current maps are based on 
2004 data. She presented two options to move forward to be in compliance with the Coastal 
Management findings. 

9:32:01 AM Dr. Banyan reviewed the recommended changes in the Future Land Use 
element policies based on the new Coastal Management data. 

U :\Deputy City Clerk\MINUTES\LP A \2019\09-12-19 Local Planning Agency Minutes.doc 



9:45: 11 AM Dr. Banyan next discussed the recommended Capital Improvement Policy 
revisions. 

9:54:29 AM Discussions continued on the recommended Amendments to this Ordinance. 

Board Member Rex Sims motioned to accept Option 2 as the recommended changes to the 
Coastal Management Plan, Committee Member Don Colapietro seconded. Committee Member 
Sam Vincent continued discussions and would like to make sure it includes review of the entire 
Ordinance which needs to be added to the motion. In addition, a recommendation for 
consistency of the Comprehensive Plan. The motion passed unanimously. 

IV. REVIEW OF THE FOLLOWING ORDINANCE FOR CO ENCY WITH THE CITY OF 
BONITA SPRINGS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: AN A N TO THE BONITA SPRINGS 
LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE CHAPTER 3 (DEV T STANDARDS); CREATING 
A NEW SECTION UNDER ARTICLE V, DIV BONITA BEACH ROAD 
DESIGN STANDARDS; CHAPTER 4 (ZON ISION 10, CREATING A 
NEW DIVISION OF SUPPLEMENTARY: ONS, ESTABLISHING 
CRITERIA FOR DEVELOPMENT A NG THE BONITA 
BEACH ROAD CORRIDOR; AMEND LE V DIVISIONS 
5, 6, 7 and 8, USE TABLES; AMENDIN ONING) ART E III DIVISION 1 
PLANNED DEVELOPMENT; PROVIDIN FLICTS OF LAW, SEVERABILITY, 
CODIFICATION, SCRIVENE ERRORS, ION IN CODE AND AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

"tle block of the Ordinance into the 

Colapietro motioned to approve the recommended changes. 
d consistent with the City of Bonita Springs Comprehensive 
ously. 

oman Carolyn Gallagher discussed the issue of Meg Jacobson's 
om~ ommittee and the void of a Vice-Chair. Committee Member Rex Sims 

volunteer · the Vice-Chair position. All committee members were in favor. By 
unanimous v' " fall Committee Members, Committee Member Rex Sims is to assume the role 
ofVice-Chair, effective immediately. 

V. NEXT MEETING. Thursday, October 10, 2019 

VI. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 06/13/19 

Committee Member Sims motioned to approve the minutes as 
Member Schwartz seconded and the motion carried unanimously. 

presented, Committee 

VII. ADJOURNMENT. 

U:\Deputy City Clerk\MINUTES\LPA\2019\09-12-19 Local Planning Agency Minutes.doc 



There being no further items to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 11 :05 A.M. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Michelle Kunderer, Recording Secretary 

Date: 

APPROVED: 

BONITA SPRINGS ZONING BOARD: 

------------
AUTHENTICATED: 

Carolyn Gallagher, Chairwoman 

Debbie Filipek, City Clerk 

U :\Deputy City Clerk\MINUTES\LP A \2019\09-12-19 Local Planning Agency Minutes.doc 


	Structure Bookmarks
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	-~ 
	Figure
	" 
	·-
	E -a C (].J E <( -a (].J ~ u (].J 0.. X w 
	Figure
	~.,,~: ❖~ ', 
	APPROVED: BONITA SPRINGS ZONING BOARD: ------------AUTHENTICATED: Carolyn Gallagher, Chairwoman Debbie Filipek, City Clerk 




